MINUTES PENNINGTON COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION April 24, 2017 @ 9:00 a.m.

County Commissioners' Meeting Room - Pennington County Administration Building

MEMBERS PRESENT: Sig Zvejnieks, Lori Litzen, Rich Marsh, Travis Lasseter, Barbara

Landers, and Ron Buskerud.

STAFF PRESENT: PJ Conover, Michaele Hoffmann (SAO), and Jeri Ervin.

ROLL CALL

1. APPROVAL OF THE APRIL 10, 2017, MINUTES

Moved by Litzen and seconded by Lasseter to approve the Minutes of the April 10, 2017, Planning Commission meeting. Vote: unanimous 6 to 0.

2. APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA

Moved by Marsh and seconded by Lasseter to approve the Agenda of the April 24, 2017, Planning Commission meeting. Vote: unanimous 6 to 0.

Moved by Lasseter and seconded by Litzen to approve the Consent Calendar of the April 24, 2017, Planning Commission meeting. Vote: unanimous 6 to 0.

CONSENT CALENDAR

The following items have been placed on the Consent Calendar for action to be taken on all items in accordance with staff's recommendation by a single vote. Any item may be removed from the Consent Calendar, by any Planning Commissioner, staff member, or audience member for separate consideration. The findings of this Planning Commission are recommendations to the Pennington County Board of Commissioners who will make the final decision.

3. <u>CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT REVIEW / CU 96-11</u>: Donald and Norma Lynde. To review a double-wide manufactured home as a caretaker's residence in a General Agriculture District in accordance with Section 510 of the Pennington County Zoning Ordinance.

SE1/4NW1/4, except Lot A, Section 22, T1S, R6E, BHM, Pennington County, South Dakota.

To continue the review of Conditional Use Permit / CU 96-11 to the June 12, 2017, Planning Commission meeting.

Vote: unanimous 6 to 0.

4. CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT REVIEW / CU 10-37: Kolin and Michele Sperle. To review an accessory structure, a caboose, in a Low Density Residential District in accordance with Sections 207 and 510 of the Pennington County Zoning Ordinance.

Lot C-15, Wolframite Estates, Section 34, T1S, R5E, BHM, Pennington County, South Dakota.

To continue the review of Conditional Use Permit / CU 10-37 to the June 12, 2017, Planning Commission meeting.

Vote: unanimous 6 to 0.

5. CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT REVIEW / CU 14-04: Dan and Nancy Evangelisto. To review the existing Conditional Use Permit to include Lot 12 to allow for a Recreational Resort to include a Bed and Breakfast, up to 10 rental units and special events to include: weddings, wine tasting, rehearsal dinners, and family reunions in a General Agriculture District in accordance with Sections 205 and 510 of the Pennington County Zoning Ordinance.

Lots 3, 4, 10, 11 and 12, Custer Trails Subdivision #1, Section 22, T1N, R5E, BHM, Pennington County, South Dakota.

To end Conditional Use Permit / CU 14-04.

Vote: unanimous 6 to 0.

CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT REVIEW / CU 16-04: Alex and Mikal Kulesza. To review a Vacation Home Rental on the subject property in a Limited Agriculture District in accordance with Sections 206, 319, and 510 of the Pennington County Zoning Ordinance.

Lot B of Lot 1, Merchen Addition #2, Section 21, T2N, R6E, BHM, Pennington County, South Dakota.

To approve of the extension of Conditional Use Permit / CU 16-04 with the following fifteen (15) conditions:

- 1. That the maximum overnight occupancy, based on SD DENR approval, be limited to six (6) people and the maximum daytime occupancy be limited to nine (9) people;
- 2. That the applicant provide a landline in case of an emergency;
- 3. That if an addition is constructed and/or the on-site wastewater treatment system is upgraded in the future, this Conditional Use Permit be reviewed so

- that the maximum occupancy may be adjusted accordingly, which will require approval from SD DENR;
- 4. That all necessary permits are obtained prior to any additions to the structure and/or the on-site wastewater treatment system is upgraded;
- 5. That the applicant continue to maintain current licenses with the South Dakota Department of Health (Vacation Home License) and the Department of Revenue (Sales Tax License) and that copies of these licenses be provided to the Planning Department prior to operation of the Vacation Home Rental;
- 6. That the applicant continue to maintain an Evacuation (Emergency) Plan and provide copies to all overnight guests in case there is a need to evacuate guests from the property in the event of an emergency and that a copy of said plan be kept on file at the Planning Department;
- 7. That a minimum of three (3) off-street parking spaces continually be provided on-site, each measuring a minimum of nine feet (9) by eighteen feet and surfaced with gravel, concrete, or asphalt and maintained in a dust-free manner;
- 8. That an interior informational sign be continually posted in accordance with the requirements of Section 319-G, with 9-1-1 and 394-4139 listed as contacts for Fire Department and Sheriff's Department, during operation of the residence as a VHR;
- 9. That the lot address be posted at all times on the residence and so it is clearly visible from Day Break Ridge Road, in accordance with Ordinance #20;
- 10. That the applicant continually ensure the VHR is operated in accordance with the requirements of Section 319-F (Performance Standards) at all times;
- 11. That if the person designated as the Local Contact is ever changed from Alex Kulesza, the interior informational sign be updated and the applicant renotify the Planning Department and surrounding landowners within 500 feet via notices sent by Certified Mail;
- 12. That all applicable Federal, State, and local regulations be adhered to at all times, including South Dakota Administrative Rule 44:02:08, which regulates Vacation Home Rentals;
- 13. That prior to the placement of any on-premise signs, the applicant must obtain approval of a Sign Permit;
- 14. That the applicant obtain an approved Building Permit for any structure exceeding 144 square feet or permanently anchored to the ground which

includes the necessary site plans to be reviewed and approved by the Planning Director; and,

15. That this Conditional Use Permit be reviewed in three (3) years, on a complaint basis, or as directed by the Pennington County Board of Commissioners and/or Planning Commission to verify that all conditions are being met.

Vote: unanimous 6 to 0.

7. <u>CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT REVIEW / CU 16-34</u>: Jessica Thurmes. To review a Recreational Vehicle to be used as temporary living quarters for no more than 180 days per calendar year on the subject property in a Low Density Residential District in accordance with Sections 207 and 510 of the Pennington County Zoning Ordinance.

Lot 4, Harrington Subdivision, Section 19, T2S, R7E, BHM, Pennington County, South Dakota.

To approve of the extension of Conditional Use Permit / CU 16-34 with the following eight (8) conditions:

- 1. That the assigned address for the subject property be continually posted so it is visible from both directions of travel on Milo Lane in accordance with Pennington County's Ordinance #20;
- 2. That the minimum setback requirements for a Low Density Residential District be continually maintained on the property;
- 3. That the subject property continues to remain free of debris and junk vehicles;
- 4. That an approved Building Permit be obtained for any structure exceeding 144 square feet or permanently anchored to the ground, which requires a site plan to be reviewed and approved by the Planning Director;
- 5. That no additional living quarters be allowed to exist on the property;
- 6. That the Recreational Vehicle shall not be used as living quarters on the subject property for more than 180 days per calendar year;
- 7. That the applicant adheres to the Forest Service comments at all times;
- 8. That this Conditional Use Permit be reviewed in two (2) years, on a complaint basis, or as deemed necessary by the Planning Commission or Board of Commissioners to verify that all Conditions of Approval are being met.

Vote: unanimous 6 to 0.

8. CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT / CU 17-08: Jeremiah and Angela Thomas. To operate a part-time sawmilling business as a Home Occupation on the subject property in a Low Density Residential District in accordance with Sections 204, 207, and 510 of the Pennington County Zoning Ordinance.

Tract 5, Leisure Hills Estates, Section 36, T1N, R3E, BHM, Pennington County, South Dakota.

To continue Conditional Use Permit / CU 17-08 to the May 8, 2017, Planning Commission meeting.

Vote: unanimous 6 to 0.

PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT REVIEW / PU 09-02: Salvation Army. To review the Salvation Army Camp Planned Unit Development in accordance with Section 213 of the Pennington County Zoning Ordinance.

Lot B of Lot 1 of Lot C of Lot 8 of Lot E; Lot 2 of Lot C of Lot 8 of Lot E; and the unplatted portion of Lot C of Lot 8 of Lot E, Big Bend Placer MS 1442, Section 8, T1N, R6E, BHM, Pennington County, South Dakota.

To recommend approval of the extension of Planned Unit Development / PU 09-02 with the following twenty (20) conditions:

- 1. That the minimum setbacks from property lines continue to be twenty-five (25) feet from all property lines and fifty-eight (58) feet from Section Lines;
- 2. That the Planning Director may allow additional development or construction, which is consistent with the existing development on this property. Significant changes in the use or impacts on adjacent land, uses as determined by the Planning Director, shall require an amendment to this Planned Unit Development;
- 3. That a minimum of one 36-unit first aid kit be continually provided and accessible to the public at all times;
- 4. That the internal driveway continue to be a minimum of a 24-foot-wide driving surface and maintained in a dust free manner;
- 5. That the uses for this Planned Unit Development shall continually be limited to the existing uses already on the property, which include a bunkhouse with a capacity of 15 people, a picnic shelter, two (2) restrooms (male and female) with showers and toilets, a church shelter, a fire pit with seating, an officer's

- residence, two (2) wells and drainfields, and the expansion to include a pastor's prayer retreat cabin, a meeting/dining/safety hall, six (6) deck platforms, five (5) cabins, and five (5) RV sites;
- 6. That prior to any work being conducted within the boundaries of the Special Flood Hazard Area, an approved Floodplain Development Permit be obtained;
- 7. That a Building Permit be obtained for any structure exceeding 144 square feet or permanently anchored to the ground, which requires a site plan to be reviewed and approved by the Planning Director;
- 8. That the any new On-Site Wastewater Treatment System be designed by an engineer and that all the supporting percolation tests and soil profile information be stamped by the engineer and obtain approval from the South Dakota Department of Environment and Natural Resources;
- 9. That the applicant ensures the rustic character of the property is continually maintained;
- 10. That no open fire shall be permitted, unless approved by the State Wild Land Fire Suppression or Johnson Siding Fire Chief;
- 11. That barbecue pits, fireplaces, and incinerators shall be located, constructed, maintained, and used as to minimize fire hazard and smoke nuisance, both on and off the property. The Fire Chief shall approve the facilities before the use is permitted;
- 12. That any parking areas be maintained in a dust free manner;
- 13. That each sleeping room have a smoke/heat detector;
- 14. That a portable fire extinguisher with a minimum 2 A-BC rating shall continually be placed in each structure and shall be inspected and tagged annually;
- 15. That each floor, where occupants are sleeping, shall continually have two (2) means of escape;
- 16. That the applicant continually works with the Pennington County Fire Administrator in regards to evacuation, mitigation; building construction, water supplies, safety drills, emergency alerting systems and other safety issues:
- 17. That the camp continually be limited to a maximum of one hundred (100) overnight total campers at one time;

- 18. That the new cabins be limited to one (1) story;
- 19. That all structures continue to be forty-five (45) feet from the west ridgeline; and,
- 20. That this Planned Unit Development be reviewed in five (5) years, on a complaint basis, or as directed by the Pennington County Planning Commission or Board of Commissioners to verify that all Conditions of Approval are being met.

Vote: unanimous 6 to 0.

END OF CONSENT CALENDAR

10. <u>PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT REVIEW / PU 16-03</u>: Dan and Nancy Evangelisto. To review the existing Planned Unit Development to allow for a Specialty Resort Development to include uses such as vacation home rentals, weddings, receptions, picnics, family reunions, satellite church for 100-150 people, church functions, parties, single-family residences, bed and breakfast, storage gift shop, spa, cabana, bistro, detached accessory structure with living quarters, duplex, etc., on the subject properties, in accordance with Section 213 of the Pennington County Zoning Ordinance.

Lot 3 and that 1/2 of private drive adjacent to said lot; Lot 4; Lot 7 and that 1/2 of private drive adjacent to said lot; Lot 10 and that 1/2 of private drive adjacent to said lot; Lot 11 and that 1/2 of private drive adjacent to said lot; Lot 12 and that 1/2 of private drive adjacent to said lot; Lot 13 and that 1/2 of private drive adjacent to said lot; Lot 14 and that 1/2 of private drive adjacent to said lot; Lot 15 and that 1/2 of private drive adjacent to said lot; Lot 16 and that 1/2 of private drive adjacent to said lot; Lot 17 and that 1/2 of private drive adjacent to said lot; Lot 18 and that 1/2 of private drive adjacent to said lot; Lot 19 and that 1/2 of private drive adjacent to said lot; Lot 20 and that 1/2 of private drive adjacent to said lot; Lot 21, Lot 22 and that part of private drive adjacent to said lot; Lot 23B and that 1/2 of private drive adjacent to said lot; Lot 27 and that 1/2 of private drive adjacent to said lot; Lot 28 and that 1/2 of private drive adjacent to said lot; Lot 29 and that 1/2 of private drive adjacent to said lot; Lot 30 and that 1/2 of private drive adjacent to said lot; Lot 31 and that 1/2 of private drive adjacent to said lot, Lot 32 and that 1/2 of private drive adjacent to said lot; Lot 33 and that 1/2 of private drive adjacent to said lot; Lot 34 and that 1/2 of private drive adjacent to said lot; Lot 35 and that 1/2 of private drive adjacent to said lot; Lot 36 and that 1/2 of private drive adjacent to said lot; Lot 37 and that 1/2 of private drive adjacent to said lot; Lot 41 and that 1/2 of private drive adjacent to said lot; Lot 42 and that 1/2 of private drive adjacent to said lot; Lot 43 and that 1/2 of private drive adjacent to said lot; Lot 44, Lot 45 and that 1/2 of private

drive adjacent to said lot; all located in Custer Trails Subdivision #1, Section 22, T1N, R5E, BHM, Pennington County, South Dakota.

Conover stated this is a review of the applicants' Planned Unit Development to allow for a Specialty Resort Development to include uses, such as vacation home rentals, weddings, receptions, picnics, family reunions, satellite church for 100-150 people, church functions, parties, single-family residences, bed and breakfast, storage gift shop, spa, cabana, bistro, detached accessory structure with living quarters, duplex, etc., on the subject properties

Staff recommended approval of the extension of Planned Unit Development / PUD 16-03, with the following forty-three (43) conditions:

- 1. That the applicants sign a Statement of Understanding (SOU) within ten (10) days of the approval of the extension of PU 16-03. The SOU is available at the Planning Department;
- 2. That a Building Permit be obtained for any structure exceeding 144 square feet or permanently anchored to the ground, which includes the necessary site plans to be reviewed and approved by the Planning Director;
- 3. That the Developer [hereafter known as Century Construction LLC and/or its successor or the Custer Trail Subdivision One Home Owners architectural review committee] ensure the residential character of the property is maintained;
- 4. That daily and event operations of the specialty resort be conducted by owners, on-site manager, and staff as necessary;
- 5. That all natural drainage paths be continually maintained;
- 6. That the business sign (the one proposed, by the applicant, for placement on the brick wall by the applicant) which directs attention to the Inn shall be allowed with an approved Sign Permit. Such sign shall not exceed the area of the existing subdivision sign square feet and shall be limited to one such sign per approved home occupation use. Such sign shall be either a wall sign or a ground sign and shall not be located in any public right-of-ways;
- 7. That prior to the placement of any on and off-premise signs, the applicant must obtain approval of a Sign Permit. That every effort will be made for signs within the PUD to use natural materials, i.e. stone, concrete, native woods and blend into the surrounding area and to have a minimal impact. Signs must be approved in writing by Developer prior to the issuance of a Sign Permit issued by the Planning Director;
- 8. That the following be permissible, with approved Sign Permits reviewed and signed by the Planning Director (where applicable): an existing and approved

development/subdivision entrance sign located on Lot 3; two (2) additional entrance signs immediately off of Carbon Loop Road; one (1) event site sign located on retaining wall on Lots 10-11-12, similar to the development sign; and other signs as needed. All signs within the PUD must comply with the Pennington County Sign Ordinance unless otherwise specified within PUD 16-03;

- 9. That the address be properly and continually posted on both the residence and at the approach, for all structures with addresses, so it be visible in both directions of the approach, accordance with Pennington County's Ordinance #20. This is to be completed prior to July 1, 2017;
- 10. That the applicant maintain an Emergency Plan and provide copies to all overnight guests in case there is a need to evacuate guests from the property in the event of an emergency and that a copy of said plan be kept on file at the Planning Department;
- 11. That a minimum of 34 parking spaces be provided on-site, each measuring a minimum of 9 feet by 18 feet and maintained in a dust-free manner in accordance with Section 310 of the Pennington County Zoning Ordinance. Existing and approved required parking for 150 guests must be located on Lots 3, 4, 10, 11, and 12 with over flow parking on Lot 45;
- 12. That the driveway in front of the Inn and up past the over-flow parking lot, have a 24-foot-wide driving surface and four (4) inches of gravel; the other two-way roads, within the PUD, have 16- to 18-foot-wide driving surfaces, with four (4) inches of gravel; and all one-way roads, have a 12-foot-wide driving surface, with four (4) inches of gravel. The responsible Street Authority shall meet or exceed roadway requirements, per State and County regulations;
- 13. That all music being provided for outdoor activities be in compliance with the County Noise Ordinance;
- 14. That the applicants apply for a Temporary Building Permit (TBP), for the event tent. Said TBP will be valid for a period not to exceed twelve (12) continuous months after approval. In addition, said TBP will be reviewed for possible permanent permitting during the February 2018 review;
- 15. That all exterior lighting must be of low level intensity, which does not result in excessive glare upon surrounding neighbors;
- 16. That the applicants obtain all necessary permits from other governing bodies for operation of the Specialty Resort including, but not limited to, approval from the South Dakota Department of Health for the Bed & Breakfast and Specialty Resort and a Sales Tax License from the South Dakota Department of Revenue;

- 17. That a smoke detector be placed in each sleeping room utilized for the Bed and Breakfast with a minimum of at least one (1) smoke detector per floor;
- 18. That a portable fire extinguisher with a minimum 2 A-BC rating shall be placed on each floor level of the Bed and Breakfast so it accessible to all guests at all times and the fire extinguisher shall be inspected and tagged annually;
- 19. That the maximum number of people staying at the Bed and Breakfast establishment, at one time, be in compliance with the South Dakota Lodging Establishments Health and Safety Manual;
- 20. That the applicants comply with South Dakota Codified Law 34-18;
- 21. That the physical address of each structure be posted in each guest room utilized for Bed and Breakfasts, the Specialty Resort, and Vacation Home Rental(s);
- 22. That temporary port-a-potties only be placed on subject properties when needed, not to exceed ten (10) continuous months in any calendar year and that port-a-potties may be utilized by the guests of the events for wastewater disposal at a ratio of one port-a-potty per 50 guests. Any other means of wastewater disposal will require proper permitting and review of the system by both the Pennington County Planning Department and South Dakota Department of Environment and Natural Resources;
- 23. That the Planning Director may allow additional development or construction, which is consistent with the existing development on this property. Significant changes in the use or impacts on adjacent land, as determined by the Planning Director, shall require an amendment to this Planned Unit Development / PU 16-03;
- 24. That measures be taken by the Road District, along Summer Creek Road and parking spaces, prohibiting people from backing directly into the Right-of-Way of Summer Creek Drive;
- 25. That no on-street vehicular parking shall be permitted, except in accordance with reasonable standards, which may be established by the Road District and may be reviewed by local Public Safety agencies to ensure emergency vehicle pass-ability on the interior roadways;
- 26. That written approval from the Developer be obtained prior to issuance of permits;
- 27. That Lots 3, 4, 10, 11 and 12 of the specialty resort be a bed and breakfast (specialty resort) with up to 10 guest rooms, and events such as: weddings, receptions, corporate events, family reunions, bridal and baby showers, Christmas parties and other types of gatherings similar in nature, up to a maximum of 150

- daily guests. The specialty resort would also be allowed to have: Beer and Wine sales (with proper permits), a bistro/Restaurant, gift shop, spa cabana/gazebo, storage shed, permanent tent, kitchen, bathrooms and to also be used for a vacation home rental and private single-family residence;
- 28. That Lots 13, 14, 15, 16, 17, 18, 20, 21, 28, 29, 30-37, and 41 each allow of the following with approved permits: single-family dwelling, Vacation Home Rental; bed and breakfast, or specialty resort;
- 29. That Lot 7 allow for three (3) Recreational Vehicle (RV) sites, not to include Park Models, for use by friends and family of the PUD or for one (1) of the following with approved permits: single-family dwelling, vacation home rental, bed and breakfast, and specialty resort. The existing on-site wastewater treatment systems must comply with Section 204-J and obtain an Operating Permit prior to County Board approval;
- 30. That Lots 19 and 22 each allow for one (1) of the following with approved permits: single-family residence with guest house living quarters within a detached accessory building, duplex, Vacation Home Rental, bed and breakfast, and specialty resort;
- 31. That Lot 23B allow for one (1) of the following with approved permits: Single-family dwelling, Vacation Home Rental, bed and breakfast, specialty resort, and easement (with property permits) for future underground holding tanks for designed and engineered water system;
- 32. That Lot 27 allow for one (1) of the following with approved permits: the existing garage/accessory building, single-family dwelling with guest quarters living quarters within a detached accessory building, duplex, Vacation Home Rental, bed and breakfast, and specialty resort;
- 33. That Lots 41, 42, 43, and 44 allow for one (1) of the following with approved permits: specialty resort, bed and breakfast, single-family dwelling, and Vacation Home Rental;
- 34. That Lot 45 allow for one (1) of the following with approved permits (if applicable): parking lot, specialty resort, bed and breakfast, single-family dwelling and Vacation Home Rental;
- 35. That Lots 3-4 have a zero (0) foot setback on all interior lot lines, a fifteen (15) foot front and rear yard setback, and a ten (10) foot side yard setback;
- 36. That Lots 7, 13, 14, 15, 17, 18, 27, 28, 32, 33, 34, 36, 37, 41, 42, 44 and 45 have a fifteen (15) foot front and rear yard setback, and a ten (10) foot side yard setback;

- 37. That Lots 10, 11, 12 have a zero (0) foot setback on all interior lot lines, a fifteen (15) foot front and rear yard setback, and a ten (10) foot side yard setback;
- 38. That Lots 20, 21, 30, 31, 35 and 43 have a ten (10) foot setback on all property lines and that this PUD replaces any existing setback requirements previously approved;
- 39. That Lot 29 have a fifteen (15) foot front, rear and side yard setbacks;
- 40. That Lots 16, 19, 22 and 23B have a fifteen (15) foot front, rear and side yard setback on all property lines not adjacent to the Right-of-Way. Lot lines adjacent to the Right-of-Way will have a zero (0) foot setback;
- 41. That proposed Guest Houses, on specified lots, must comply with Section 318 of the Pennington County Zoning Ordinance;
- 42. That the Planning Director has the final determination on the location of Lot Setbacks and on the interpretation of conflicting Conditions of Approval; and,
- 43. That this Planned Unit Development be reviewed on February 26, 2018, or upon complaint of violation of applicable provisions of the Zoning Ordinance, or as deemed necessary by either the Planning Commission or Board of Commissioners to ascertain all the Conditions of Approval are being met.

Discussion followed.

Moved by Litzen and seconded by Marsh to approve of the extension of Planned Unit Development / PUD 16-03, with the following forty-three (43) conditions:

- 1. That the applicants sign a Statement of Understanding (SOU) within ten (10) days of the approval of the extension of PU 16-03. The SOU is available at the Planning Department;
- 2. That a Building Permit be obtained for any structure exceeding 144 square feet or permanently anchored to the ground, which includes the necessary site plans to be reviewed and approved by the Planning Director;
- 3. That the Developer [hereafter known as Century Construction LLC and/or its successor or the Custer Trail Subdivision One Home Owners architectural review committee] ensure the residential character of the property is maintained;
- 4. That daily and event operations of the specialty resort be conducted by owners, on-site manager, and staff as necessary;
- 5. That all natural drainage paths be continually maintained;

- 6. That the business sign (the one proposed, by the applicant, for placement on the brick wall by the applicant) which directs attention to the Inn shall be allowed with an approved Sign Permit. Such sign shall not exceed the area of the existing subdivision sign square feet and shall be limited to one such sign per approved home occupation use. Such sign shall be either a wall sign or a ground sign and shall not be located in any public right-of-ways;
- 7. That prior to the placement of any on and off-premise signs, the applicant must obtain approval of a Sign Permit. That every effort will be made for signs within the PUD to use natural materials, i.e. stone, concrete, native woods and blend into the surrounding area and to have a minimal impact. Signs must be approved in writing by Developer prior to the issuance of a Sign Permit issued by the Planning Director;
- 8. That the following be permissible, with approved Sign Permits reviewed and signed by the Planning Director (where applicable): an existing and approved development/subdivision entrance sign located on Lot 3; two (2) additional entrance signs immediately off of Carbon Loop Road; one (1) event site sign located on retaining wall on Lots 10-11-12, similar to the development sign; and other signs as needed. All signs within the PUD must comply with the Pennington County Sign Ordinance unless otherwise specified within PUD 16-03;
- 9. That the address be properly and continually posted on both the residence and at the approach, for all structures with addresses, so it be visible in both directions of the approach, accordance with Pennington County's Ordinance #20. This is to be completed prior to July 1, 2017;
- 10. That the applicant maintain an Emergency Plan and provide copies to all overnight guests in case there is a need to evacuate guests from the property in the event of an emergency and that a copy of said plan be kept on file at the Planning Department;
- 11. That a minimum of 34 parking spaces be provided on-site, each measuring a minimum of 9 feet by 18 feet and maintained in a dust-free manner in accordance with Section 310 of the Pennington County Zoning Ordinance. Existing and approved required parking for 150 guests must be located on Lots 3, 4, 10, 11, and 12 with over flow parking on Lot 45;
- 12. That the driveway in front of the Inn and up past the over-flow parking lot, have a 24-foot-wide driving surface and four (4) inches of gravel; the other two-way roads, within the PUD, have 16- to 18-foot-wide driving surfaces, with four (4) inches of gravel; and all one-way roads, have a 12-foot-wide driving surface, with four (4) inches of gravel. The responsible Street

- Authority shall meet or exceed roadway requirements, per State and County regulations;
- 13. That all music being provided for outdoor activities be in compliance with the County Noise Ordinance;
- 14. That the applicants apply for a Temporary Building Permit (TBP), for the event tent. Said TBP will be valid for a period not to exceed twelve (12) continuous months after approval. In addition, said TBP will be reviewed for possible permanent permitting during the February 2018 review;
- 15. That all exterior lighting must be of low level intensity, which does not result in excessive glare upon surrounding neighbors;
- 16. That the applicants obtain all necessary permits from other governing bodies for operation of the Specialty Resort including, but not limited to, approval from the South Dakota Department of Health for the Bed & Breakfast and Specialty Resort and a Sales Tax License from the South Dakota Department of Revenue;
- 17. That a smoke detector be placed in each sleeping room utilized for the Bed and Breakfast with a minimum of at least one (1) smoke detector per floor;
- 18. That a portable fire extinguisher with a minimum 2 A-BC rating shall be placed on each floor level of the Bed and Breakfast so it accessible to all guests at all times and the fire extinguisher shall be inspected and tagged annually;
- 19. That the maximum number of people staying at the Bed and Breakfast establishment, at one time, be in compliance with the South Dakota Lodging Establishments Health and Safety Manual;
- 20. That the applicants comply with South Dakota Codified Law 34-18;
- 21. That the physical address of each structure be posted in each guest room utilized for Bed and Breakfasts, the Specialty Resort, and Vacation Home Rental(s);
- 22. That temporary port-a-potties only be placed on subject properties when needed, not to exceed ten (10) continuous months in any calendar year and that port-a-potties may be utilized by the guests of the events for wastewater disposal at a ratio of one port-a-potty per 50 guests. Any other means of wastewater disposal will require proper permitting and review of the system by both the Pennington County Planning Department and South Dakota Department of Environment and Natural Resources;

- 23. That the Planning Director may allow additional development or construction, which is consistent with the existing development on this property. Significant changes in the use or impacts on adjacent land, as determined by the Planning Director, shall require an amendment to this Planned Unit Development / PU 16-03;
- 24. That measures be taken by the Road District, along Summer Creek Road and parking spaces, prohibiting people from backing directly into the Right-of-Way of Summer Creek Drive;
- 25. That no on-street vehicular parking shall be permitted, except in accordance with reasonable standards, which may be established by the Road District and may be reviewed by local Public Safety agencies to ensure emergency vehicle pass-ability on the interior roadways;
- 26. That written approval from the Developer be obtained prior to issuance of permits;
- 27. That Lots 3, 4, 10, 11 and 12 of the specialty resort be a bed and breakfast (specialty resort) with up to 10 guest rooms, and events such as: weddings, receptions, corporate events, family reunions, bridal and baby showers, Christmas parties and other types of gatherings similar in nature, up to a maximum of 150 daily guests. The specialty resort would also be allowed to have: Beer and Wine sales (with proper permits), a bistro/Restaurant, gift shop, spa cabana/gazebo, storage shed, permanent tent, kitchen, bathrooms and to also be used for a vacation home rental and private single-family residence;
- 28. That Lots 13, 14, 15, 16, 17, 18, 20, 21, 28, 29, 30-37, and 41 each allow of the following with approved permits: single-family dwelling, Vacation Home Rental; bed and breakfast, or specialty resort;
- 29. That Lot 7 allow for three (3) Recreational Vehicle (RV) sites, not to include Park Models, for use by friends and family of the PUD or for one (1) of the following with approved permits: single-family dwelling, vacation home rental, bed and breakfast, and specialty resort. The existing on-site wastewater treatment systems must comply with Section 204-J and obtain an Operating Permit prior to County Board approval;
- 30. That Lots 19 and 22 each allow for one (1) of the following with approved permits: single-family residence with guest house living quarters within a detached accessory building, duplex, Vacation Home Rental, bed and breakfast, and specialty resort;
- 31. That Lot 23B allow for one (1) of the following with approved permits: Single-family dwelling, Vacation Home Rental, bed and breakfast, specialty

- resort, and easement (with property permits) for future underground holding tanks for designed and engineered water system;
- 32. That Lot 27 allow for one (1) of the following with approved permits: the existing garage/accessory building, single-family dwelling with guest quarters living quarters within a detached accessory building, duplex, Vacation Home Rental, bed and breakfast, and specialty resort;
- 33. That Lots 41, 42, 43, and 44 allow for one (1) of the following with approved permits: specialty resort, bed and breakfast, single-family dwelling, and Vacation Home Rental;
- 34. That Lot 45 allow for one (1) of the following with approved permits (if applicable): parking lot, specialty resort, bed and breakfast, single-family dwelling and Vacation Home Rental;
- 35. That Lots 3-4 have a zero (0) foot setback on all interior lot lines, a fifteen (15) foot front and rear yard setback, and a ten (10) foot side yard setback;
- 36. That Lots 7, 13, 14, 15, 17, 18, 27, 28, 32, 33, 34, 36, 37, 41, 42, 44 and 45 have a fifteen (15) foot front and rear yard setback, and a ten (10) foot side yard setback;
- 37. That Lots 10, 11, 12 have a zero (0) foot setback on all interior lot lines, a fifteen (15) foot front and rear yard setback, and a ten (10) foot side yard setback;
- 38. That Lots 20, 21, 30, 31, 35 and 43 have a ten (10) foot setback on all property lines and that this PUD replaces any existing setback requirements previously approved;
- 39. That Lot 29 have a fifteen (15) foot front, rear and side yard setbacks;
- 40. That Lots 16, 19, 22 and 23B have a fifteen (15) foot front, rear and side yard setback on all property lines not adjacent to the Right-of-Way. Lot lines adjacent to the Right-of-Way will have a zero (0) foot setback;
- 41. That proposed Guest Houses, on specified lots, must comply with Section 318 of the Pennington County Zoning Ordinance;
- 42. That the Planning Director has the final determination on the location of Lot Setbacks and on the interpretation of conflicting Conditions of Approval; and,
- 43. That this Planned Unit Development be reviewed on February 26, 2018, or upon complaint of violation of applicable provisions of the Zoning

Ordinance, or as deemed necessary by either the Planning Commission or Board of Commissioners to ascertain all the Conditions of Approval are being met.

All voting aye, the Motion carried 6 to 0.

11. COUNTY BOARD REPORT

The Board of Commissioners concurred with the Planning Commission's recommendations from the April 10, 2017, Planning Commission meeting, with the exception of:

1. <u>SECOND READING OF REZONE / RZ 17-03 AND COMPREHENSIVE PLAN AMENDMENT / CA 17-03</u>: Tyler Schad; Renner Associates – Agent. To rezone 29.485 acres from General Agriculture District to Limited Agriculture District and to rezone 40.00 acres from General Agriculture District to Heavy Industrial District.

Motion to approve Second Reading carried 3-2.

2. <u>SECOND READING OF PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT AMENDMENT / PU 17-01</u>: Karen Moore. To amend the existing Planned Unit Developments to allow for a specialty / recreational resort for a Bed and Breakfast and events, such as: weddings, receptions, company picnics, family reunions, bridal and baby showers, and other types of small gatherings similar in nature, and additional RV sites in accordance with Section 213 of the Pennington County Zoning Ordinance.

Parcel A, B, and C, Ewalt Subdivision, Section 22, T1S, R5E, BHM, Pennington County, South Dakota.

Motion to continue this Item to the May 2, 2017, Board of Commissioner's meeting.

12. ITEMS FROM THE PUBLIC

There were no items from the public.

13. <u>ITEMS FROM THE STAFF</u>

- A. Comprehensive Plan Meeting Workshops. Conover reviewed the Comprehensive Plan Meeting Workshops that were held on April 18th in Hill City; April 19th in Wall; and April 20th in Rapid City.
- B. ASFPM Certified Floodplain Cassie Bolstad. Conover stated that Cassie Bolstad passed the floodplain certification test and is now a Certified Floodplain Manager.

C.	Planning Department Planner I and Planner II positions. Conover informed the
	Planning Commission that the Planner I position is open, as Chutima Supboon's
	last day with Pennington County was April 14th. Also, Conover stated the Planner
	II position is hoping to be filled soon, as final interviews have been done.

14. <u>ITEMS FROM THE MEMBERSHIP</u>

There were no items from the membership.

15. <u>ADJOURNMENT</u>

Moved by Marsh and seconded by Litzen to adjourn.

All voting aye, the Motion carried 6 to 0.

The meeting adjourned at 9:23 a.m.

Sig Zvejnieks, Chairperson	